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Coordinates: 15°10’42”N 108°52’10”E ]

My Lai Massacre
Thdam sat My Lai
Location Son My village, Son Tinh District of South Vietnam
Date March 16, 1968
Target My Lai 4 and My Khe 4 hamlets
Attack type Massacre
Deaths 347 according to the U.S Army (not including My Khe killings), others estimate more than 400 killed and injuries are
unknown, Vietnamese government lists 504 killed in total from both My Lai and My Khe
Perpetrators Task force from the United States Army Americal Division
2LT. William Calley (convicted and then released by President Nixon to serve house arrest for two years)

The My Lai Massacre (Vietnamese: tham sdt My Lai [t"€:m S&:t mi® 1e:j], [mi*1:j] ( 4 listen); / mi:'lat/, /mi: 'ler/,
or /ImaI'laI/)[z] was the Vietnam War mass murder of between 347 and 504 unarmed civilians in South Vietnam on
March 16, 1968, by United States Army soldiers of "Charlie" Company of 1st Battalion, 20th Infantry Regiment,
11th Brigade of the Americal Division. Victims included women, men, children, and infants. Some of the women
were gang-raped and their bodies were later found to be mutilated” and many women were allegedly raped prior to
the killings.[] While 26 U.S. soldiers were initially charged with criminal offenses for their actions at M§ Lai, only
Second Lieutenant William Calley, a platoon leader in Charlie Company, was convicted. Found guilty of killing 22

villagers, he was originally given a life sentence, but only served three and a half years under house arrest.

The massacre took place in the hamlets of My Lai and My Khe of Son My village.[4][5] The event is also known as
the Son My Massacre, especially in the Vietnamese state media. The U.S. military codeword for the "Viet Cong
stronghold" was "Pinkville".[®!

The incident prompted global outrage when it became public knowledge in 1969. The massacre also increased
domestic opposition to the U.S. involvement in the Vietnam War. Three U.S. servicemen who had tried to halt the
massacre and protect the wounded were initially denounced by several U.S. Congressmen as traitors. They received
hate mail and death threats and found mutilated animals on their doorsteps. The three were later widely praised and

decorated by the Army for their heroic actions.!”!
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My Lai Massacre

Incident

Background

Company C of 1st Battalion, 20th Infantry Regiment, 11th Brigade, 23rd Infantry Division, arrived in South Vietnam
in December 1967. Though their first month in Vietnam passed without any direct enemy contact, by mid-March the

company had suffered 28 incidents involving mines or booby-traps which caused numerous injuries and five deaths.

During the Tet Offensive of January 1968, attacks were carried out in
Quang Ngai by the 48th Battalion of the National Liberation

Front (NLF), commonly referred to by the Americans as the Vietcong
or Victor Charlie (from the initials corresponding with the NATO
phonetic alphabet). U.S. military intelligence assumed that the 48th
NLF Battalion, having retreated and dispersed, was taking refuge in the
village of Son My, in Quang Ngai province. A number of specific
hamlets within that village—designated My Lai 1, 2, 3, and 4—were
suspected of harboring the 48th. (In February, the Phong Nhi and
Phong Nhat massacre and Ha My massacre were perpetrated by South
Korean Marines in Quang Nam, a neighboring province of Quang
Ngai.)

U.S. forces planned a major offensive against those hamlets using Task

Force Barker, a battalion-size unit made up of three rifle companies of

the Americal Division and led by Lieutenant Colonel Frank A. Barker.
Vietnamese women and children in My Lai Colonel Oran K. Henderson urged his officers to "go in there

before being killed in the massacre, March 16, aggressively, close with the enemy and wipe them out for good".[lo]

1968.” According to the testimony, they were Barker ordered the 1st Battalion commanders to burn the houses, kill

killed seconds after the photo was taken.[ I Photo he I K f f h ) h 1 [11]
by Ronald L. Hacberle the livestock, destroy foodstuffs, and perhaps to close the wells.

On the eve of the attack, at the Charlie Company briefing, Captain
Ernest Medina told his men that nearly all the civilian residents of the hamlets in Son My village would have left for
the market by 7 a.m. and any who remained would be NLF or NLF sympathizers.[m He was asked whether the order
included the killing of women and children. Those present later gave different accounts of Medina's response. Some,
including platoon leaders, testified that the orders as they understood them were to kill all guerrilla and North
Vietnamese combatants and "suspects" (including women and children, as well as all animals), to burn the village,
and pollute the wells.['¥ He was also quoted as saying "They're all V.C., now go and get them" and was heard to say
"Who is my enemy?" Medina added, "Anybody that was running from us, hiding from us, or appeared to be the

. . . . . . . 14
enemy. If a man was running, shoot him, sometimes even if a woman with a rifle was running, shoot her."[ ]

Company C was to enter the hamlet, spearheaded by its first platoon. The other two companies in the task force were

to cordon off the village.
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Killings

On the morning of March 16, Charlie Company landed following a
short artillery and helicopter gunship preparation. Though the
Americans found no enemy fighters in the village, many soldiers
suspected there were NLF troops hiding underground in the homes of
their wives or elderly parents. The U.S. soldiers, including a platoon
led by Second Lieutenant William Calley, went in shooting at what

they claimed to have deemed an enemy position.

A large group of about 70—80 villagers, rounded up by the 1st Platoon

Dead man and child. Photo by Ronald L.
Haeberle

in the center of the village, were killed on an order given by Calley,

who also participated.

Members of the 2nd Platoon killed at least 60—70 Vietnamese, as they swept through the northern half of My Lai 4
and through Binh Tay, a small subhamlet about 400 metres (1,300 ft) north of My Lai 4.4 The platoon suffered one

dead and seven wounded by mines and booby traps.[4J

After the initial "sweeps" by the Ist and 2nd Platoons, the 3rd Platoon was dispatched to deal with any "remaining

resistance”. The 3rd Platoon also rounded up and killed a group of seven to twelve women and children.¥

Since Charlie Company had encountered no enemy opposition, the 4th Battalion, 3rd Infantry Regiment, was
transported by air to its landing zone at between 08:15 and 08:30 and attacked the subhamlet of M$ Khe 4, killing as
many as 90 people.

Over the following two days, both battalions were involved in additional burning and destruction of dwellings, as
well as mistreatment of Vietnamese detainees. While most of the soldiers did not participate in the crimes, they

neither protested nor complained to their superiors.[ls]

Helicopter intervention

Warrant Officer One Hugh Thompson, Jr., a helicopter pilot from an aero-scout team, saw a large number of dead
and dying civilians as he began flying over the village—all of them infants, children, women, and old men, with no
signs of draft-age men or weapons anywhere. Thompson and his crew witnessed an unarmed passive woman being
kicked and shot at point-blank range by Captain Medina (Medina later claimed that he thought she had a
grenade).[16] The crew made several attempts to radio for help for the wounded. They landed their helicopter by a
ditch, which they noted was full of bodies and in which there was movement. Thompson asked a sergeant he
encountered there (David Mitchell of the Ist Platoon) if he could help get the people out of the ditch, and the
sergeant replied that he would "help them out of their misery". Thompson, shocked and confused, then spoke with
Second Lieutenant Calley, who claimed to be "just following orders". As the helicopter took off, they saw Mitchell
firing into the ditch.

Thompson then saw a group of civilians (again consisting of children, women and old men) at a bunker being
approached by ground personnel. Thompson landed and told his crew that if the soldiers shot at the Vietnamese
while he was trying to get them out of the bunker that they were to open fire at these soldiers. Thompson later
testified that he spoke with a lieutenant (identified as Stephen Brooks of the 2nd Platoon) and told him there were
women and children in the bunker, and asked if the lieutenant would help get them out. According to Thompson, "he
[the lieutenant] said the only way to get them out was with a hand grenade". Thompson testified that he then told
Brooks to "just hold your men right where they are, and I'll get the kids out". He found 12—16 people in the bunker,
coaxed them out and led them to the helicopter, standing with them while they were flown out in two groups.

Returning to My Lai, Thompson and other air crew members noticed several large groups of bodies. Spotting some

survivors in the ditch, Thompson landed again. A crew member entered the ditch and returned with a bloodied but
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apparently unharmed child who was flown to safety. The child was thought to be a boy, but later turned out to be a
four-year-old girl. Thompson then reported what he had seen to his company commander, Major Frederic W. Watke,
using terms such as "murder" and "needless and unnecessary killings". Thompson's reports were confirmed by other

pilots and air crew.!”]

For their actions, Thompson was awarded the Distinguished Flying Cross (DFC) and his crew were awarded Bronze
Star medals. Andreotta received his medal posthumously, as he was killed in action on April 8§, 1968.! As the DFC

citation included a fabricated account of rescuing a young girl from My Lai from "intense crossfire"!!

Thompson
threw his medal away.[][] He later received a Purple Heart for other services in Vietnam.! In 1998, the helicopter
crew's medals were replaced by the Soldier's Medal, "the highest the U.S. Army can award for bravery not involving
direct conflict with the enemy". The medal citations state they were "for heroism above and beyond the call of duty
while saving the lives of at least 10 Vietnamese civilians during the unlawful massacre of non-combatants by
American forces at My Lai".1%! Thompson initially refused the medal when the US Army wanted to award it quietly.
He demanded it be done publicly and that his crew also be honored in the same Way.[m The veterans also made

contact with the survivors of My Lai.!"!

Aftermath

Owing to the chaotic circumstances and the Army's decision not to
undertake a definitive body count, the number of civilians killed at My
Lai cannot be stated with certainty. Estimates vary from source to
source, with 347 and 504 being the most commonly cited figures. The
memorial at the site of the massacre lists 504 names, with ages ranging
from one to 82. A later investigation by the U.S. Army arrived at a

lower figure of 347 deaths,[zo] the official US estimate.

After returning to their base at about 11:00, Thompson reported the

211 His allegations of civilian killings quickly =~ Dead bodies outside a burning dwelling. Photo by

massacre to his superiors.
reached Lieutenant Colonel Frank Barker, the operation's overall Ronald L. Haeberle

commander. Barker radioed his executive officer to find out from

Captain Medina what was happening on the ground. Medina then gave the cease-fire order to Charlie Company to

"knock off the killing".

Thompson made an official report of the killings, and was interviewed by Colonel Oran Henderson, the commander
of the 11th Infantry Brigade (the parent organization of the 20th Infantry).[zz] Concerned, senior American officers
cancelled similar planned operations by Task Force Barker against other villages (My Lai 5, My Lai 1, etc.) in
Quang Ngai province, possibly preventing the additional massacre of hundreds, if not thousands, of Vietnamese

civilians.[*!

Reporting, cover-up and investigations

The first reports claimed that "128 Viet Cong and 22 civilians" were killed in the village during a "fierce fire fight".
General William Westmoreland, the Military Assistance Command, Vietnam commander, congratulated the unit on
the "outstanding job". As related at the time by the Army's Stars and Stripes magazine, "U.S. infantrymen had killed
128 Communists in a bloody day-long battle.">* On March 16, 1968, in or around the official press briefing known
as the “Five O’Clock Follies”, "a mimeographed release included this passage: 'In an action today, Americal Division
forces killed 128 enemy near Quang Ngai City. Helicopter gunships and artillery missions supported the ground

elements throughout the day.”'[25]

Initial investigations of the M¥§ Lai operation were undertaken by the 11th Light Infantry Brigade's commanding

officer, Colonel Henderson, under orders from the Americal Division's executive officer, Brigadier General George
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H. Young. Henderson interviewed several soldiers involved in the incident, then issued a written report in late April
claiming that some 20 civilians were inadvertently killed during the operation. The Army at this time was still

describing the event as a military victory that had resulted in the deaths of 128 enemy combatants.

Six months later, Tom Glen, a 21-year-old soldier of the 11th Light Infantry Brigade, wrote a letter to General
Creighton Abrams, the new overall commander of U.S. forces in Vietnam, accusing the Americal Division (and
other units of the U.S. military) of routine and pervasive brutality against Vietnamese civilians. The letter was

detailed and its contents echoed complaints received from other soldiers, [ ation needed]

Colin Powell, then a 31-year-old Army major, was charged with investigating the letter, which did not specifically
reference M¥ Lai (Glen had limited knowledge of the events there). In his report, Powell wrote, "In direct refutation

261 soldiers and the Vietnamese people are

of this portrayal is the fact that relations between Americal Division
excellent." Powell's handling of the assignment was later characterized by some observers as "whitewashing" the
atrocities of My Lai.*”l In May 2004, Powell, then United States Secretary of State, told CNN's Larry King, "I
mean, I was in a unit that was responsible for My Lai. I got there after My Lai happened. So, in war, these sorts of

horrible things happen every now and again, but they are still to be deplored."m]

Independently of Glen, Ronald Ridenhour, a former member of the 11th Infantry Brigade, sent a letter in March
1969 to thirty members of Congress imploring them to investigate the circumstances surrounding the "Pinkville"
incident."!! Ridenhour had learned about the events at M§ Lai secondhand from talking to members of Charlie
Company over a period of months beginning in April 1968. He became convinced that something "rather dark and
bloody did indeed occur" at My Lai, and was so disturbed by the tales he heard that within three months of being
discharged from the Army he penned his concerns to Congress.[] Most recipients of Ridenhour's letter ignored it,
with the exception of Congressman Mo Udall”™ and Senators Barry Goldwater and Edward Brooke.! Udall urged

the House Armed Services Committee to call on Pentagon officials to conduct an investigation.[]

Eventually, Calley was charged with several counts of premeditated murder in September 1969, and 25 other officers
and enlisted men were later charged with related crimes. It was another two months before the American public
learned about the massacre and trials.

In May 1970, a sergeant who participated in Operation Speedy Express wrote a confidential letter to then Army
Chief of Staff Westmoreland describing civilian killings on the scale of the massacre occurring as "a My Lay each
month for over a year" during 1968—1969. Two other letters to this effect from enlisted soldiers to military leaders in
1971, all signed "Concerned Sergeant", were uncovered within declassified National Archive documents. The letters
describe routine civilian killings as a policy of population pacification. Army policy also stressed very high body
counts and without regard to who was killed. Alluding to indiscriminate killings described as unavoidable,
Commander of the Ninth Division, then Maj. Gen. Julian Ewell in September 1969 submitted a confidential report to
Westmoreland and other generals describing the countryside in some areas of Vietnam as resembling the battlefields
of Verdun.l!

Independent investigative journalist Seymour Hersh, after extensive conversations with Calley, broke the My Lai
story on November 12, 1969, on the Associated Press wire service;BO] on November 20, Time, Life and Newsweek
magazines all covered the story, and CBS televised an interview with Paul Meadlo, a soldier in Calley's unit during

the massacre. The Plain Dealer (Cleveland, Ohio) published explicit photographs of dead villagers killed at My Lai.

In November 1969, General William R. Peers was appointed to conduct a thorough investigation into the My Lai

[31]

incident and its subsequent cover-up. Peers' final report '~ ', published in March 1970, was highly critical of top

officers for participating in the cover-up and the Charlie Company officers for their actions at My Lai 4321

According to Peers's findings:

[The 1st Battalion] members had killed at least 175—200 Vietnamese men, women, and children. The
evidence indicates that only 3 or 4 were confirmed as Viet Cong although there were undoubtedly
several unarmed VC (men, women, and children) among them and many more active supporters and

sympathizers. One man from the company was reported as wounded from the accidental discharge of his
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weapon.[4]

However, critics of the Peers Commission pointed out that it sought to place the real blame on four officers who
were already dead, foremost among them the commander of Task Force Barker, Lieutenant Colonel Frank Barker,
who was killed in a mid-air collision on June 13, 1968.

Court martial

On November 17, 1970, the United States Army charged 14 officers, including Major General Samuel W. Koster,
the Americal Division's commanding officer, with suppressing information related to the incident. Most of those
charges were later dropped. Brigade commander Henderson was the only officer who stood trial on charges relating

to the cover-up; he was acquitted on December 17, 1971133

In a four-month-long trial, despite claims that he was following orders from his commanding officer, Captain
Medina, Calley was convicted on March 29, 1971, of premeditated murder for ordering the shootings. He was
initially sentenced to life in prison at hard labor. Two days later, however, President Richard Nixon made the
controversial decision to have Calley released, pending appeal of his sentence. Calley's sentence was later adjusted,

so that he would eventually serve three and one-half years under house arrest at Fort Benning.

In a separate trial, Captain Medina denied giving the orders that led to the massacre, and was acquitted of all charges,
effectively negating the prosecution's theory of "command responsibility", now referred to as the "Medina standard".
Several months after his acquittal, however, Medina admitted that he had suppressed evidence and had lied to

Colonel Henderson about the number of civilian deaths.[34]

Most of the enlisted men who were involved in the events at My Lai had already left military service, and were thus

legally exempt from prosecution. In the end, of the 26 men initially charged, Calley was the only one convicted.

Some have arguedWikipedia:Avoid weasel words that the outcome of the M§ Lai courts-martial was a reversal of
the laws of war that were set forth in the Nuremberg and Tokyo War Crimes Tribunals.*”! Secretary of the Army
Howard Callaway was quoted in The New York Times as stating that Calley's sentence was reduced because Calley
honestly believed that what he did was a part of his orders—a rationale that stands in direct contradiction of the

standards set at Nuremberg and Tokyo, where German and Japanese soldiers were executed for similar acts.

Survivors

In early 1972, the camp (at M§ Lai 2) where the survivors of the My Lai Massacre had been relocated was largely
destroyed by Army of the Republic of Vietnam (South Vietnam) artillery and aerial bombardment. The destruction
was officially attributed to "Viet Cong terrorists". The truth was revealed by Quaker service workers in the area
through testimony (in May 1972) by Martin Teitel at hearings before the Congressional Subcommittee to Investigate
Problems Connected with Refugees and Escapees. In June 1972, Teitel's account of the events was published in The

New York Times.[36]

More than a thousand people turned out March 16, 2008, forty years after the massacre, to remember the victims of

one of the most notorious chapters of the Vietnam War. The memorial drew the families of the victims and returning
qea 1371

U.S. war veterans alike.
On August 19, 2009, Calley made his first public apology for the massacre in a speech to the Kiwanis club of

Greater Columbus, Georgia;[33]

"There is not a day that goes by that I do not feel remorse for what happened that day in My Lai", he

told members of the Kiwanis club. "I feel remorse for the Vietnamese who were killed, for their

families, for the American soldiers involved and their families. I am very sorry."[39][4O]
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Effects and analysis

Some military observers concluded that My Lai showed the need for more and better volunteers to provide stronger
leadership for the troops. As the Vietnam War dragged on, the number of well-trained and experienced career
soldiers on the front lines dropped sharply as casualties and combat rotation took their toll. These observers claimed
the absence of the many bright young men who avoided military service through college attendance or homeland

service caused the talent pool for new officers to become very shallow.!

They pointed to Calley, a young,
unemployed college dropout, as an example of the raw and inexperienced recruits being rushed through officer
training. Others pointed out problems with the military's insistence on unconditional obedience to orders while at the
same time limiting the doctrine of "command responsibility" to the lowest ranks. Others saw My Lai and related war
crimes as a direct result of the military's attrition strategy, with its emphasis on "body counts" and "kill ratios". The
fact that the massacre was successfully covered up for 18 months was seen as a prime example of the Pentagon's

w[41]

"Culture of Concealment and of the lack of integrity that permeated the Defense establishment. South Korean

Vietnam Expeditionary Forces Commanding Officer General Chae Myung-shin remarked, "Calley tried to get

revenge for the deaths of his troops. In a war, this is natural."[]

Participants

Commanders

* Lieutenant Colonel Frank A. Barker — commander of Task Force Barker who ordered the destruction of the
village and controlled the artillery preparation and combat assault from his helicopter; he was killed in Vietnam

on June 13, 1968, before the investigation had begun.[4] [42]

* Lieutenant Stephen Brooks — platoon leader of 2nd Platoon, Charlie Company.

* Second Lieutenant William L. Calley — platoon leader of 1st Platoon, Charlie Company.

* Colonel Oran K. Henderson — brigade commander who ordered the attack; he had been in a helicopter over M§
Lai.l*!

* Major General Samuel W. Koster — commander of the Americal Division.

* Captain Eugene Kotouc — military intelligence officer who provided some of the information on which the My
Lai combat assault was based; together with Medina and a South Vietnamese police officer, he tortured and
executed suspects later that day.[ls]
* Captain Ernest Medina — company commander of Charlie Company who planned, ordered, and supervised the

execution of the operation in Son M§ Village.[43]

1st Platoon, Charlie Company

» Sergeant Michael Bernhardt — refused to participate in the killing of civilians. Captain Medina threatened
Sergeant Bernhardt to deter him from writing to Bernhardt's congressman to expose the massacre and, as a result,
was allegedly given more dangerous duties such as point duty on patrol.[44] Later he would help expose and detail
the massacre in numerous interviews with the press, and he served as a prosecution witness in the trial of Medina,
where he was subjected to intense cross examination by defense counsel F. Lee Bailey. Recipient of the New
York Society for Ethical Culture's 1970 Ethical Humanist Award.*!

* Herbert Carter — platoon "tunnel rat". He claimed he shot himself in the foot in order to be MEDEVACed out of

the village'[citation needed]

* Dennis Conti — testified he initially refused to shoot, but later fired some M79 grenade launcher rounds at a group
of fleeing people with unknown effect.

» James Dursi — killed a mother and child, then refused to kill anyone else even when ordered to do so.

* Ronald Grzesik — a team leader. He claimed he followed orders to round up civilians, but refused to kill them.

* Robert Maples — stated to have refused to participate. Wikipedia:Please clarify
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Paul Meadlo — said he was afraid of being shot if he did not participate. Lost his foot to a land mine the next day.
Later, he publicly admitted his part in the massacre.

Sergeant David Mitchell — accused by witnesses of shooting people at the ditch site; pleaded not guilty. Mitchell
was acquitted. His attorney was Ossie Brown of Baton Rouge, Louisiana, who thereafter became the district
attorney of East Baton Rouge Parish, Louisiana.[®!
Varnado Simpson — committed suicide in 1997, citing guilt over several murders committed in My Lai.

Charles Sledge — radio operator, later prosecution witness.

Harry Stanley — claimed to have refused to participate.

Esequiel Torres — previously had tortured and hanged an old man because Torres found his bandaged leg
suspicious. He and Roschevitz (described below) were involved in the shooting of a group of ten women and five
children in a hut. Later he was ordered by Calley to shoot a number of people with a M60 machine gun; he fired a
burst before refusing to fire again, after which Calley took his weapon and opened fire himself, (/o1 needed]
Frederick Widmer — Widmer, who has been the subject of pointed blame, is quoted as saying, "The most
disturbing thing I saw was one boy—and this was something that, you know, this is what haunts me from the
whole, the whole ordeal down there. And there was a boy with his arm shot off, shot up half, half hanging on and

he just had this bewildered look in his face and like, "What did I do, what's wrong?' He was just, you know, it's,

it's hard to describe, couldn't comprehend. I, I shot the boy, killed him and it's—I'd like to think of it more or less
n [47]

as a mercy killing because somebody else would have killed him in the end, but it wasn't right.

Other soldiers

William Doherty and Michael Terry — soldiers in the 3rd Platoon who killed
the wounded in the ditch.

Ronald L. Haeberle — photographer attached to the 11th Brigade information
office who accompanied C Company.

Nicholas Capezza — chief medic in Charlie Company. He insisted he saw
nothing unusual.

Sergeant Minh — ARVN interpreter who confronted Captain Medina about the
number of civilians that were killed. Medina replied, "Sergeant Minh, don't ask
anything — those were the orders."*¥!

Gary Roschevitz — grabbed an M 16 rifle from Varnado Simpson to kill five

. . 49 . . .
Vietnamese prlsoners.[ ] According to various witnesses, he later forced seven

women to undress with the intention of raping them. When the women refused,

Hugh Thompson, Jr. rescued
he reportedly shot them.[so] ) 18 i p ) Y
Vietnamese civilians during the My

Lai massacre.
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Rescue helicopter crew

*  Warrant Officer One Hugh Thompson, Jr. — helicopter pilot who confronted the ground forces personally. Died 6
January 2006.

* Specialist Four Glenn Andreotta — crew chief. Killed In Action: 8 April 1968.

* Specialist Four Lawrence Colburn — door gunner.

Photographs

The massacre, like many other operations in Vietnam, was captured in photographs by U.S. Army personnel. The
most published and graphic ones were taken by Ronald Haeberle, a U.S Army Public Information Detachment
photographer who accompanied the men of Charlie Company that day. Some of the black-and-white photographs he
took were with an Army camera and were either subject to censorship or did not depict any Vietnamese casualties
when published in an Army newspaper. Haeberle also took color photographs with his own camera while on duty the

same day, which he kept and later sold to the media."l>!!

The derision "baby killers" was often used by anti-war activists against American soldiers, largely as a result of the
My Lai Massacre. ) Although American soldiers had been so taunted since at least 1966, My Lai and the Haeberle
photographs further solidified the stereotype of drug-addled soldiers who killed babies—according to M. Paul
Holsinger, the And babies poster, which used a Haeberle photo, was "easily the most successful poster to vent the
outrage that so many felt about the conflict in Southeast Asia. Copies are still frequently seen in retrospectives

dealing with the popular culture of the Vietnam War era or in collections of art from the period."[53]

Another soldier, John Henry Smail of the 3rd Platoon, took at least 16 color photographs depicting U.S. Army
personnel, helicopters, and aerial views of My Lai.l>¥ These, along with Haeberle's photographs, were included in
the "Report of the Department of the Army review of the Preliminary Investigations into the My Lai Incident".

Roger Louis Alaux, an artillery lieutenant who was with Captain Medina during the massacre, also took some

photographs that day, including aerial views of My Lai from a helicopter and of the landing zone.

[ < E g 2 t - P
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Widmer (Carter dwelling

shot himself in the
foot with a .45
pistol during the
My Lai Massacre)
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Media

In 1989, the British television station Yorkshire Television broadcast
the documentary Four Hours in My Lai as part of the ITV networked
series First Tuesday. Using eyewitness statements from both
Vietnamese and Americans, the programme revealed new evidence

about the massacre.

On March 15, 2008, the BBC broadcast the documentary The My Lai

Tapes[ss] on Radio 4 and subsequently on the BBC World Service,

[

in both English[56] and Vietnamese, 371 that used never before heard

audio recordings of testimony taken at The Pentagon during the . Woed

1969—1970 Peers Inquiry. My Lai massacre memorial site, near Quang Ngai,
Vietnam.

On April 26, 2010, the American PBS broadcast a documentary as

part of its American Experience series, entitled The American Experience: My Lail

On December 10, 2010, Italian producer Gianni Paolucci released a movie entitled My Lai F our,[sg] directed by
Paolo Bertola, starring American actor Beau Ballinger as Calley, and adapted from the Pulitzer Prize-winning book
by Seymour Hersh.[>”!

References

[1] http://toolserver.org/~geohack/geohack.php?pagename=My_Lai_Massacre&params=15_10_42_N_108_52_10_E_type:landmark

[2] At the time of the original revelations of the massacre, My Lai was pronounced like the English words "my lay". Later, the pronunciation "me
lie" became commonly used.

[3] "Murder in the name of war—My Lai" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/2/hi/asia-pacific/64344.stm). BBC. July 20, 1998.

[4] Summary report from the report of General Peers (http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/summary_rpt.html).

[5] Department of the Army. Report of the Department of the Army Review of the Preliminary Investigations into the My Lai Incident ( The Peers
Report (http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/MYL_Peers.htm)), Volumes I-III (1970).

[8] "Report of the Department of Army review of the preliminary investigations into the My Lai incident. Volume III, Exhibits, Book
6—Photographs, 14 March 1970" (http://www.loc.gov/rr/frd/Military_Law/pdf/RDAR-Vol-IIIBook6.pdf). From the Library of
Congress, Military Legal Resources. (http://www.loc.gov/rr/frd/Military_Law)

[9]1 "My Lai" (http://www.pbs.org/wgbh/americanexperience/films/mylai/), Original broadcast PBS American Experience, 9 pm, April 26,
2010 Time Index 00:35' into the first hour (no commercials)

[10] "My Lai: A Question of Orders" (http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,904643,00.html). Jan. 25, 1971. Time magazine.

[11] Summary of Peers Report (http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/summary_rpt.html). Significantly, he gave no
instructions about segregating and safeguarding non-combatants. My Lai: An American Tragedy. William George Eckhardt 2000 (http://
www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/ecktragedy.html).

[12] "Peers Report: The Omissions and Commissions Of Cpt. Ernest L. Medina" (http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/
medina.html), law.umkc.edu.

[13] Smith, Karen D., "American soldiers testify in My Lai court martial" (http://amarillo.com/stories/120600/fri_120600-36.shtml),
Amarillo Globe-News, Dec. 6, 2000.

[14] Walzer, Michael, Just and Unjust Wars, (New York: Basic Books Publishing) p. 310.

[15] Eckhardt, William George, "Lawyering for Uncle Sam When He draws His Sword" (http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/
mylai/ecktragedy.html), law.umkc.edu.

[17] Thompson's own testimony before a conference at the University of Tulane in 1994 (http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/
mylai/Myl_hero.html#RON) and from the Peers Report summary (http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/
summary_rpt.html).

[18] "Heroes of My Lai honoured" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/special_report/1998/03/98/mylai/62924.stm). March 7, 1998. BBC News.

[21] Bilton & Sim (1992), pp. 176—179.

[22] "The Omissions and commissions of Col. Oran K. Henderson" (http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/Henderson.
html), law.umbkc.edu. Extract from US Army ("Peers") Rpt into My Lai Massacre.

[23] Angers (1999), pp. 219-220.

[24] "Clemency is last hope for a more normal life" (http://www.stripes.com/news/clemency-is-last-hope-for-a-more-normal-life-1.91416),
Stars and Stripes, May 12, 2009. Retrieved 2012-07-21.



http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Quang_Ngai
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File%3AMy_Lai_Memorial_Site_-_Vietnam_-_Diorama_of_Massacre.JPG
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=United_Kingdom
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Television_station
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=ITV_Yorkshire
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Four_Hours_in_My_Lai
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=ITV
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=First_Tuesday_%28documentary_strand%29
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=BBC
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=BBC_World_Service
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=The_Pentagon
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=PBS
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=American_Experience
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=My_Lai_%28documentary%29
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=My_Lai_Four
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Paolo_Bertola
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Pulitzer_Prize
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Seymour_Hersh
http://toolserver.org/~geohack/geohack.php?pagename=My_Lai_Massacre&params=15_10_42_N_108_52_10_E_type:landmark
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Massacre
http://news.bbc.co.uk/2/hi/asia-pacific/64344.stm
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=BBC
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/summary_rpt.html
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/MYL_Peers.htm
http://www.loc.gov/rr/frd/Military_Law/pdf/RDAR-Vol-IIIBook6.pdf
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Library_of_Congress
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Library_of_Congress
http://www.loc.gov/rr/frd/Military_Law
http://www.pbs.org/wgbh/americanexperience/films/mylai/
http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,904643,00.html
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Time_%28magazine%29
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/summary_rpt.html
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/ecktragedy.html
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/ecktragedy.html
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/medina.html
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/medina.html
http://amarillo.com/stories/120600/fri_120600-36.shtml
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/ecktragedy.html
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/ecktragedy.html
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/Myl_hero.html#RON
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/Myl_hero.html#RON
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/summary_rpt.html
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/summary_rpt.html
http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/special_report/1998/03/98/mylai/62924.stm
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=BBC_News
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/Henderson.html
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/Henderson.html
http://www.stripes.com/news/clemency-is-last-hope-for-a-more-normal-life-1.91416

My Lai Massacre

11

[25] "The Press: Farewell to the Follies" (subscriber-only access) (http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,903831,00.
html#ixzz1VizJJ8eo), Time, February 12, 1973. Retrieved 2012-03-03.

[26] "The 23rd Infantry Division (United States), more commonly known as the 'Americal' Division of the United States Army was formed in
May 1949 on the island of New Caledonia."

[27] "Behind Colin Powell's Legend — My Lai" (http://www.consortiumnews.com/archive/colin3.html) by Robert Parry and Norman
Solomon, The Consortium for Independent Journalism, July 22, 1996.

[31] http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/MYL_Peers.htm

[37] My Lai survivors gather to pray for victims (http://edition.cnn.com/2008/WORLD/asiapcf/03/16/vietnam.mylai.ap/index.html)

[38] Siegel, R. "My Lai Officer Apologizes for Massacre" (http://www.npr.org/templates/story/story.php?storyld=112125912&ps=cprs) All
Things Considered, NPR, Aug 21, 2009

[41] Huffington, Arianna (21 April 1999) "Washington's culture of concealment" The San Diego Union-Tribune page B-8. The "culture of
concealment" was often referred to as the "second war" during the Vietnam War, one fought between the media and the government.

[47] " Remember My Lai (http://www.pbs.org/wgbh/pages/frontline/programs/transcripts/714.html)". WGBH Educational Foundation,
May 23, 1989. Retrieved on June 28, 2009.

[49] Star.Vietnam.Edu (http://star.vietnam.ttu.edu/cgi-bin/starfetch.exe?f60iEwsr3jFA3vblixSNMeDLJ6Hv8p1tuauLrSCAnbvk6bDyr.
G50d@AYqtUqqnWsVhQOwfs8eyzY @2PjeEQIJWU3frLl.mUol @ijrh8tf.0/1540148004.pdf)

[50] Yarborough, Trin, Surviving Twice: Amerasian Children of the Vietnam War (http://books.google.com/books?id=TIfbUZzjsSMC&
pg=PA19&lpg=PA19&dgq=gary+Roschevitz&source=web& ots=G8BrRT9ak2&sig=lhbGPcD8i7QJrdeyPNiW7WdfWFk). 2005. Page 19.
ISBN 1-57488-864-1.

[51] Frascina, Francis, Art, Politics, and Dissent: Aspects of the Art Left in Sixties America, pgs. 175-186

[52] MacPherson, Myra, Long time passing: Vietnam and the haunted generation (http://books.google.com/books?id=bo0fGCHVx3kC&
pg=PA497), pg. 497, "...veterans were stamped "baby killers" largely as a result of the My Lai Massacre..."

[53] Holsinger, M. Paul, "And Babies" in War and American Popular Culture (http://books.google.com/books?id=0e4AOVHkJ90C&
pg=PA363), Greenwood Press, 1999, pg. 363

[59] Cigognini, Carla, "My Lai Four — Foto, trailer e locandina del film di Paolo Bertola" (http://www.cineblog.it/post/25943/

my-lai-four-foto-trailer-e-locandina-del-film-di-paolo-bertola), cineblog.it, 09 December 2010.

Further reading

* Vietnamese Wikipedia; Tham sdt So'n My, cited June 7, 2006. (Vietnamese Wikipedia article on the subject)

* 161st Assault Helicopter Company. Unit History of the 161st Assault Helicopter Company (http://www.161ahc.
org/161history.htm) (who intervened in the massacre)

* Americal Division Veterans Association; Americal Locations in Vietnam (http://americal.org/firebase.shtml),
cited June 3, 2006.

* Anderson, David L. (1998) Facing My Lai: Moving Beyond the Massacre University Press of Kansas: Lawrence,
Kansas—extensive interviews with trial participants and soldiers.

* Angers, Trent (1999) The Forgotten Hero of My Lai: The Hugh Thompson Story Lafayette, La.: Acadian House.

* Becker, Elizabeth. Kissinger Tapes Describe Crises, War and Stark Photos of Abuse. (http://www.infoshop.
org/inews/article.php?story=04/05/27/8912760& mode=print), The New York Times, May 27, 2004 (mirrored)

* Belknap, Michal R. (2002) The Vietnam War on Trial: The My Lai Massacre and the Court-Martial of Lieutenant

Calley. University Press of Kansas. ISBN 0-7006-1211-4.

* Beidler, Philip D., "Calley's Ghost" (http://www.vqronline.org/articles/2003/winter/beidler-calleys-ghost/),
Virginia Quarterly Review, Winter 2003.

 Bilton, Michael and Sim, Kevin. (1992) Four Hours in My Lai New York: Viking, 1992—a recent
re-examination, draws extensively on interviews with participants and contains detailed bibliographic references.

* Chomsky, Noam. After Pinkville (http://www.chomsky.info/articles/1971----02.htm), Bertrand Russell War
Crimes Tribunal on Vietnam, 1971

* Chomsky, Noam and Edward S. Herman. Counter-Revolutionary Violence: Bloodbaths in Fact & Propaganda
(http://mass-multi-media.com/CRV/), 1973 and 2004

* Colburn, Lawrence and Paula Brock. The Choices Made—Lessons from My Lai on Drawing the Line (http://
seattletimes.nwsource.com/pacificnw/2002/0310/cover.html), Seattle Times, March 10, 2002

e Gershen, Martin. (1971) Destroy or Die: The True Story of My Lai New York: Arlington House.

* Goldstein, Joseph. (1976) The My Lai Massacre and its Cover-Up New York: Free Press.



http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,903831,00.html#ixzz1VizJJ8eo
http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,903831,00.html#ixzz1VizJJ8eo
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Time_%28magazine%29
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=23rd_Infantry_Division_%28United_States%29
http://www.consortiumnews.com/archive/colin3.html
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Robert_Parry_%28journalist%29
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Norman_Solomon
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Norman_Solomon
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/MYL_Peers.htm
http://edition.cnn.com/2008/WORLD/asiapcf/03/16/vietnam.mylai.ap/index.html
http://www.npr.org/templates/story/story.php?storyId=112125912&ps=cprs
http://www.pbs.org/wgbh/pages/frontline/programs/transcripts/714.html
http://star.vietnam.ttu.edu/cgi-bin/starfetch.exe?f6oiEwsr3jFA3vblix8NMeDLJ6Hv8p1tuauLrSCAnbvk6bDyr.G5od@AYqtUqqnWsVhQ0wfs8eyzY@2PjeEQJWU3frLl.mUol@ijrh8tf.o/1540148004.pdf
http://star.vietnam.ttu.edu/cgi-bin/starfetch.exe?f6oiEwsr3jFA3vblix8NMeDLJ6Hv8p1tuauLrSCAnbvk6bDyr.G5od@AYqtUqqnWsVhQ0wfs8eyzY@2PjeEQJWU3frLl.mUol@ijrh8tf.o/1540148004.pdf
http://books.google.com/books?id=TIfbUZzjsSMC&pg=PA19&lpg=PA19&dq=gary+Roschevitz&source=web&ots=G8BrRT9ak2&sig=lhbGPcD8i7QJrdeyPNiW7WdfWFk
http://books.google.com/books?id=TIfbUZzjsSMC&pg=PA19&lpg=PA19&dq=gary+Roschevitz&source=web&ots=G8BrRT9ak2&sig=lhbGPcD8i7QJrdeyPNiW7WdfWFk
http://books.google.com/books?id=bo0fGCHVx3kC&pg=PA497
http://books.google.com/books?id=bo0fGCHVx3kC&pg=PA497
http://books.google.com/books?id=Oe4AOVHkJ9oC&pg=PA363
http://books.google.com/books?id=Oe4AOVHkJ9oC&pg=PA363
http://www.cineblog.it/post/25943/my-lai-four-foto-trailer-e-locandina-del-film-di-paolo-bertola
http://www.cineblog.it/post/25943/my-lai-four-foto-trailer-e-locandina-del-film-di-paolo-bertola
http://vi.wikipedia.org/wiki/Thảm_sát_Mỹ_Lai
http://www.161ahc.org/161history.htm
http://www.161ahc.org/161history.htm
http://americal.org/firebase.shtml
http://www.infoshop.org/inews/article.php?story=04/05/27/8912760&mode=print
http://www.infoshop.org/inews/article.php?story=04/05/27/8912760&mode=print
http://www.vqronline.org/articles/2003/winter/beidler-calleys-ghost/
http://www.chomsky.info/articles/1971----02.htm
http://mass-multi-media.com/CRV/
http://seattletimes.nwsource.com/pacificnw/2002/0310/cover.html
http://seattletimes.nwsource.com/pacificnw/2002/0310/cover.html

My Lai Massacre

12

Greiner, Bernd. (2009) War without Fronts: The USA in Vietnam New Haven: Yale University Press.

Greiner, Bernd. (2009) The March 1968 Massacre in My Lai 4 and My Khe 4, Online Encyclopedia of Mass
Violence, [online], published on 5 October 2009, URL (http://www.massviolence.org/
The-March-1968-Massacre-in-My-Lai), ISSN 1961-9898

Hammer, Richard. (1971) The Court-Martial of Lt. Calley New York: Coward.

Hersh, Seymour M. (1972). Cover-up: the Army's secret investigation of the massacre at My Lai 4. Random
House. ISBN 0-394-47460-0.

Hersh, Seymour M. (1970). My Lai 4: A Report on the Massacre and Its Aftermath. Random House. ISBN
0-394-43737-3.

Hersh, Seymour M. The original, Pulitzer-Prize winning articles about the My Lai Massacre for the St. Louis
Post Dispatch, November 13, November 20 and November 25, 1969. (http://www.pierretristam.com/Bobst/
library/wf-200.htm)

My Lai and Why It Matters: Review of Ron Ridenhour's Videotaped Lecture (http://www.oz.net/~vvawai/sw/
sw38/MyLai_video.html)

O'Brien, Tim. (1994) In the Lake of the Woods, McClelland & Stewart. ISBN 1-895246-31-8 — a work of
historical fiction about a Vietnam Vet who can't escape his own experience of My Lai.

Olson, James S. and Roberts, Randy (eds.) (1998) My Lai: A Brief History with Documents, Palgrave MacMillan.
ISBN 0-312-17767-4

Peers, William. (1979) The My Lai Inquiry New York: Norton.

Raimondo, Maj. Tony, JA. The My Lai Massacre: A Case Study (http://carlisle-www.army.mil/usamhi/usarsa/
HUMANRT/Human Rights 2000/my-lai.htm), Human Rights Program, School of the Americas, Fort Benning,
Georgia

Ridenhour, Ron. "Jesus Was a Gook" (http://lists.village.virginia.edu/sixties/HTML_docs/Texts/Narrative/
Ridenhour_Jesus_01.html)

Rockwood, Lawrence. “The Lesson Avoided: the Official Legacy of the My Lai Massacre” The Moral Dimension
of Asymmetrical Warfare, Counter-terrorism, Democratic Values and Military Ethics, Netherlands Defense
College (2008).

Sack, John. (1971) Lieutenant Calley: His Own Story New York: Viking.

"My Lai: An American Tragedy" (http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,901621,00.html).

Time. Dec. 05, 1969.

University of Missouri-Kansas City Law School. The My Lai Courts-Martial, 1970 (http://www.law.umkc.
edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/mylai.htm)

Teitel, Martin. Again, the Suffering of Mylai (http://pqasb.pqarchiver.com/nytimes/83447084.
htm1?did=83447084&FMT=ABS&FMTS=Al&date=Jun+7,+1972&author=By+MARTIN+TEITEL&
pub=New+Y ork+Times++(1857-Current+file)&desc=Again,+the+Suffering+of+Mylai), article preview,
New York Times, June 7, 1972, pg. 45.

Texas Tech University. The Vietnam Oral History Project (http://www.vietnam.ttu.edu/oralhistory/index.
htm)

Toledo Blade. Special Report: Tiger Force (http://www.toledoblade.com/apps/pbcs.dll/
section?Category=SRTIGERFORCE)

Valentine, Douglas (1990). "The Phoenix Program" (http://www.amazon.com/gp/product/0595007384).
iUniverse. ISBN 978-0-595-00738-7. Retrieved 2011-06-18.</ref> Chapter 24, "Transgressions" (http://www.

intellnet.org/resources/american_terrorism/MyLaiPhoenix.html) (deals with the My Lai Massacre)



http://www.massviolence.org/The-March-1968-Massacre-in-My-Lai
http://www.massviolence.org/The-March-1968-Massacre-in-My-Lai
http://www.pierretristam.com/Bobst/library/wf-200.htm
http://www.pierretristam.com/Bobst/library/wf-200.htm
http://www.oz.net/%7Evvawai/sw/sw38/MyLai_video.html
http://www.oz.net/%7Evvawai/sw/sw38/MyLai_video.html
http://carlisle-www.army.mil/usamhi/usarsa/HUMANRT/Human%20Rights%202000/my-lai.htm
http://carlisle-www.army.mil/usamhi/usarsa/HUMANRT/Human%20Rights%202000/my-lai.htm
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Western_Hemisphere_Institute_for_Security_Cooperation
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Fort_Benning
http://lists.village.virginia.edu/sixties/HTML_docs/Texts/Narrative/Ridenhour_Jesus_01.html
http://lists.village.virginia.edu/sixties/HTML_docs/Texts/Narrative/Ridenhour_Jesus_01.html
http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,901621,00.html
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Time_%28magazine%29
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/mylai.htm
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/mylai.htm
http://pqasb.pqarchiver.com/nytimes/83447084.html?did=83447084&FMT=ABS&FMTS=AI&date=Jun+7%2C+1972&author=By+MARTIN+TEITEL&pub=New+York+Times++(1857-Current+file)&desc=Again%2C+the+Suffering+of+Mylai
http://pqasb.pqarchiver.com/nytimes/83447084.html?did=83447084&FMT=ABS&FMTS=AI&date=Jun+7%2C+1972&author=By+MARTIN+TEITEL&pub=New+York+Times++(1857-Current+file)&desc=Again%2C+the+Suffering+of+Mylai
http://pqasb.pqarchiver.com/nytimes/83447084.html?did=83447084&FMT=ABS&FMTS=AI&date=Jun+7%2C+1972&author=By+MARTIN+TEITEL&pub=New+York+Times++(1857-Current+file)&desc=Again%2C+the+Suffering+of+Mylai
http://www.vietnam.ttu.edu/oralhistory/index.htm
http://www.vietnam.ttu.edu/oralhistory/index.htm
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Toledo_Blade
http://www.toledoblade.com/apps/pbcs.dll/section?Category=SRTIGERFORCE
http://www.toledoblade.com/apps/pbcs.dll/section?Category=SRTIGERFORCE
http://www.amazon.com/gp/product/0595007384
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=International_Standard_Book_Number
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Special:BookSources/978-0-595-00738-7
http://www.intellnet.org/resources/american_terrorism/MyLaiPhoenix.html
http://www.intellnet.org/resources/american_terrorism/MyLaiPhoenix.html

My Lai Massacre

13

External links

Hugh Thompson Foundation web site (501(c)(3) nonprofit founded by Lawrence Colburn in honor of Hugh
Thompson): http://www.hughthompson.org

The My Lai Courts-Martial 1970 (http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/mylai.htm)
Into the Dark: The My Lai Massacre (http://www.crimelibrary.com/notorious_murders/mass/lai/index_1.
html)

1969 TIME article (http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,840403,00.html)

'‘Blood and fire' of My Lai remembered 30 years later (http://www.cnn.com/WORLD/9803/16/my.lai/)
My Lai Peace Park Project (http://www.mylaipeacepark.org/)

BBC World Service: The My Lai Tapes (http://www.bbc.co.uk/worldservice/documentaries/2008/04/
080327_mylai_partone.shtml)

Calley Apologizes for 1968 My Lai Massacre (http://www.democracynow.org/2009/8/24/
calley_apologizes_for_1968_my_lai) — video report by Democracy Now!

My Lai (http://www.pbs.org/wgbh/americanexperience/films/mylai/player/) — An American Experience

Documentary



http://www.hughthompson.org
http://www.law.umkc.edu/faculty/projects/ftrials/mylai/mylai.htm
http://www.crimelibrary.com/notorious_murders/mass/lai/index_1.html
http://www.crimelibrary.com/notorious_murders/mass/lai/index_1.html
http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,840403,00.html
http://www.cnn.com/WORLD/9803/16/my.lai/
http://www.mylaipeacepark.org/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/worldservice/documentaries/2008/04/080327_mylai_partone.shtml
http://www.bbc.co.uk/worldservice/documentaries/2008/04/080327_mylai_partone.shtml
http://www.democracynow.org/2009/8/24/calley_apologizes_for_1968_my_lai
http://www.democracynow.org/2009/8/24/calley_apologizes_for_1968_my_lai
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Democracy_Now%21
http://www.pbs.org/wgbh/americanexperience/films/mylai/player/
http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=American_Experience

Article Sources and Contributors

14

Article Sources and Contributors

My Lai Massacre Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=553654638 Contributors: 172, Abangmanuk, Abhishek191288, Abyssadventurer, Acroterion, Activist, Adam Bishop,
Againme, Agentbla, Ahoerstemeier, Akdrummer75, Akulkis, AlanMyers1234, Alanscottwalker, Alansohn, Aldis90, AlexanderKaras, Alfdom, Allen3, Allstarecho, Ambulnick, Andkore,
Anetode, Angr, Anna Frodesiak, AnnaFrance, Anomalocaris, Antandrus, Anthonzi, Antiaverage, Anurag Garg, Anyeverybody, Apeloverage, Apjohns54, Arbero, Asarelah, Ashley Pomeroy,
Astronautics, Atlant, Atomsgive, Average Earthman, AviN1, AwesomeQ2, Aymatth2, B.d.mills, BJ Crowning, BadLeprechaun, Badagnani, Badgerpatrol, Banaanvreter, BasilRazi, Bazza 7,
Beagle Ninja, Beatriceu, Bejnar, BenAveling, Bernie Wadelheim, BigDunc, Bikoyski, Bill52270, Billmckern, Billy Hathorn, Bleh999, Bloodofox, Blueking12, Bob f it, Bobo192, Bongwarrior,
Boothy443, Boss1000, Brandmeister (old), Brendan19, Brock2097, Bryan Derksen, Bsadowskil, Bullytr, Burntsauce, Buster79, C d h, CCCPSOVIET, CJBay, CM7Y, CWenger, Cactus.man,
CambridgeBayWeather, Camw, Can't sleep, clown will eat me, Captain Obvious and his crime-fighting dog, Caravaggio31, CarbonRod85, CardinalDan, Caster23, Catchersmitt, CatherineMunro,
Catsmeat, Causa sui, Cekli829, Ceoil, Cgingold, Chairman S., Chanelpotts, Chapter101, Charles Nguyen, Chase me ladies, I'm the Cavalry, Chendy, Cholmes75, Chris 73, Chrislk02, Chzz,
Cla68, Clarityfiend, Clicketyclack, Cloak Reaver, Closedmouth, Coasttrip, Colenso, CommonsDelinker, Coraroidman, Correctionalfacilities33, Cptrockwood, CrazyInMirc, Crhet, Crisco 1492,
Cryptic, Csremington, Cunningham, Cyrus Andiron, DBaba, DHN, DMG413, DOSGuy, DafadGoch, Dale Arnett, DarkAudit, Darth Mike, Davenbelle, DavidDouthitt, Davidmaxwaterman,
Dbachmann, Dc218, Ddarwen, Deathbunny, Debresser, Deflective, Demomoke, Denisarona, Descendall, Dew8989, Dewritech, DexDor, Dhartung, Dick Shane, Dirksey, Discospinster, Dm iyer,
DocteurCosmos, Dom Kaos, DopefishJustin, DoubleBlue, DoyouRemeberme?, Drewright, Drmissio, Dukeofomnium, E23, ERcheck, ESkog, Eagles, Eastlaw, Echosmoke, Ed Poor, Edcolins,
Edgar181, Edibobb, Edinl, Edivorce, Edwy, Ehn, Elassint, Ellsworth, Emc2, Enuja, Eraserheadl, Ericamick, Ericfassbender, Erik, Erkan Yilmaz, ErrantX, Evanatmvn, Everyking, Everything
Else Is Taken, EvilCouch, Evolauxia, Ewen, ExcyclopediaExtreme?2, Facts @mt.org, Falcon9x5, Famspear, Fawcett5, Ffaker, Finlay McWalter, Firsfron, FlieGerFaUstMe262, Flockmeal, Fluppy,
Fordmadoxfraud, FrancisTyers, FrancoGG, Fratrep, Freakmighty, Fredrik, FreplySpang, Friendneirf, Froid, Frymaster, G Rose, GCarty, Gabbe, Gadfium, Galeandra, General Epitaph,
Gershwinrb, Get-back-world-respect, Gimboid13, Ginkgo100, Gira2be, GoldenMeadows, Goodcapcay, Graham87, Grandpafootsoldier, Grant65, Green Cardamom, GreenLantern94, Greudin,
Greymeister, Grunt, Gscshoyru, Guanaco55, Guava javajam, Gump Stump, Guroadrunner, Hadal, HaeB, Haeinous, Haham hanuka, Hajor, Hamiltondaniel, Hammer Raccoon, Hammerandclaw,
HanzoHattori, HarryHenryGebel, Havermayer, HectorRodriguez, HeinzzzderMannn, Hermeneus, Hfastedge, Hiberniantears, Histrio, Holam842000, Horgen, Hppboston, Hunter2005, Hurmeez,
Husond, Hut 8.5, Hydrogen Iodide, Ian Dunster, Ice Czar, Ignatzmice, Ikip, Illerthanradiation, Impherring13, Indextook, Infrogmation, InverseHypercube, InvisibleK, Ionius Mundus, Ipatrol,
Iridescent, Ital40188, Ivan66-half, Iwalters, J.delanoy, JEN9841, JHunterJ, JJstroker, JSmith9579, Jab843, Jadepearl, Jaedglass, JanDeFietser, Janejellyroll, Janggeom, Jeandré du Toit, Jebus989,
Jeff5102, Jersey Devil, Jiang, Jmlk17, JoanneB, Johannapropanna, Johannjs, John, John Smythe, John.james, Jossi, Jpgordon, Jrtayloriv, Juravigo, Just Another Dan, Kaihsu, Kaliz, Kanags,
Kanatonian, Karch, Karenjc, Karl-Henner, Karma Heretic, Kasaalan, Kasreyn, Kauffner, Kbdank71, Keith D, Kelisi, Kelovy, Khukri, Kintetsubuffalo, Kittybrewster, Kiwibird, Kizzle, Koavf,
KrackA KillA999, Ktr101, Kumioko (renamed), Kuru, Kwamikagami, Kyle1278, Kylemcinnes, L337p4wn, LOL, LPfi, Lancastria, Lapsed Pacifist, Lavatusa, Lawikitejana, Lawyer2b,
Ledmonkey, Levdrl, Lf1033, Liftarn, Lights, Ligulem, Lilaznboi52, Lipsticked Pig, Looper5920, LuK3, Lucas Tiridath, Lucas(CA), Luna Santin, Lupo, Lyrica.Shivers, Lzur, M.0O.X, M.nelson,
MMad, Macca7174, MachoCarioca, Mackan, Magioladitis, Magister Mathematicae, Magus732, Mailer diablo, Mangostar, Manil, Mareino, Mark, Maroux, MarsRover, Marskell, Martin Blank,
Materialscientist, Matt Gies, Mattbr, Mattk, Mav, McCart42, McNoddy, Mcshadypl, Meelar, Melchoir, MeredithParmer, Michael C Price, Michael Nathaniel Bilton, Michael Snow,

Michael. W.Wood, Mintguy, Mmccalpin, Mmoneypenny, Modest Genius, Morningmusic, Mostargue, Mtaylor848, Muddyb Blast Producer, Mugsywwiii, Mxn, NAHID, NWOG, Natalie Erin,
Nauka, NawlinWiki, Nesrl1, Nescio, NewEnglandYankee, NexDow, Nielswik, Nigholith, Nirvana77, NoltAl, Noformation, North Shoreman, Nucleusboy, Obsidian Soul, Ocelot gun, Ogre
lawless, One, Ortolan88, Pac72, PacificBoy, Pakaran, Paste, PatrickFisher, Pauly04, Pawet5586, Pax, Paxsimius, Pdbne, Pdfpdf, Phildog, Philthecow, Phl3djo, Piano non troppo, Pinkville,
Pip2andahalf, Plasticup, Pnkrockr, PoshFan, Power2084, Prester John, Prettylittlelost, Profoss, ProudIrishAspie, ProudPrimate, Proxy User, Puck42, Quadell, Qwyrxian, R'son-W, RM Gillespie,
Raineybt, Raul654, Raven34, Rd232, Ready, Redsox04, Redthoreau, Reid A., Remiel, RevolverOcelotX, RexNL, Rfertel, Rhetth, Rhianna95, Rich Farmbrough, Richard Cane, RjCan, Rjwilmsi,
Rklawton, R1, Rndandam, Robofish, RodC, Rodrigogomespaixao, Roger's Adventures Through Time, Rominger, Roncero, Ruhrjung, Ryan4314, Sadads, Sailboatd2, Salamurai, Sam Hocevar,
Sam Korn, Sam Lowry, SamF, Sango123, Sanuk, Sanya3, Saralonde, Sardanaphalus, Saturday, Scavix, Scientizzle, ScottyBerg, Scubadiver305, Sdej, Seaphoto, Seijihyouronka, Seresin, Sertrel,
Sethie, Sevela.p, Shaliya waya, Shanel, Sherurcij, Shifthours, Shinhan, ShinraiTS4, Shoessss, Shreshth91, Shuipzv3, Skizzik, Skyscrap27, Skywriter, Slarre, SlimVirgin, SmartGuy Old,
Snowdog, Snoyes, Soetermans, Sonjaaa, Soulbust, Soulpatch, Spencer, SpookyMulder, Squiddy, Srich32977, Sroulik, Sstteevvee, Stankow, Stefan Milosevski, Stephan Schulz, Stephensuleeman,
Steve Dufour, Steve2011, Stevertigo, StonedChipmunk, Stonewhite, Stor stark7, Storm Rider, Sunray, Swliv, Syngmung, Synthetik, TBadger, TDogg310, TJ Spyke, Tabletop, Tachyon01,
Tannin, TeaDrinker, Technocratic, TedE, Template namespace initialisation script, Tex, Tfine80, Tfnewman, The Moving Finger Writes, The Sartorialist, TheBioLover, TheDarkOneLives,
TheTruthisnotwithyou, Thinem, Thisglad, Tide rolls, Tillwe, Tim!, Timeshifter, Tinus, Titoxd, Tlroche, Tobby72, Toddst1, Tommyt, Tonyjones, ToughLuckLouisiana, ToughLuckMeadow,
Towsonu2003, Toytoy, Tphcm, Travelbird, Travez69, Trojanman48, Twang, Tweetz, Twsx, Tygrrr, Ukexpat, Ulric1313, UncleBubba, UrukHaiLoR, Varlaam, Vary, Verloren, Versus22,
VeryVerily, Viajero, Videmus Omnia, Viewsvoice, VolatileChemical, Vorpal blade, Vyn, WacoJacko, Wafulz, Wahcat, Walabio, Wallie, Wannabemodel, Wehwalt, WhisperToMe, Widefox,
Wiki Wikardo, WikiPanglosse, Wikiashes, Wikibofh, Wikinist, Wikipedian2, WilliamSpencer, Windkin, Wirewad, Wjholden, Wk muriithi, Woohookitty, Wooyi, Wordbuilder, Wowaconia,
XLerate, XXxXXXXXXxxX, Yanksox, YellowAssessmentMonkey, YellowMonkey, Yelyos, Ylee, Yom, Yucatann, ZappaOMati, Zeeguy, ZephyrAnycon, 1281 anonymous edits

Image Sources, Licenses and Contributors

File:My Lai massacre.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:My_Lai_massacre.jpg License: Public Domain Contributors: Ronald L. Haeberle
File:Speaker Icon.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Speaker_Icon.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: Blast, G.Hagedorn, Mobius, Tehdog, 2 anonymous edits

File:My Lai massacre woman and children.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:My_Lai_massacre_woman_and_children.jpg License: Public Domain Contributors:
Ronald L. Haeberle

File:Dead man and child from the My Lai massacre.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Dead_man_and_child_from_the_My_Lai_massacre.jpg License: Public
Domain Contributors: Ronald L. Haeberle

File:MyLai Haeberle P33 BodiesNearBurningHouse.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:MyLai_Haeberle_P33_BodiesNearBurningHouse.jpg License: Public Domain
Contributors: Ronald Haeberle

File:Hugh Tompson Jr.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Hugh_Tompson_Jr.jpg License: Public Domain Contributors: Gabbe, Jwillbur, Movieevery, Rama

File:Dead woman from the My Lai massacre.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Dead_woman_from_the_My_Lai_massacre.jpg License: Public Domain
Contributors: Ronald L. Haeberle

File:Dead man from the My Lai massacre.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Dead_man_from_the_My_Lai_massacre.jpg License: Public Domain Contributors:
Ronald L. Haeberle

File:MyLai Haeberle P37 BodyInWell.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:MyLai_Haeberle_P37_BodyInWell.jpg License: Public Domain Contributors: Ronald
Haeberle

File:Burningdwelling2.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Burningdwelling2.jpg License: Public Domain Contributors: Ronald L. Haeberle
File:Haeberlewounded.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Haeberlewounded.jpg License: Public Domain Contributors: Ronald L. Haeberle
File:Haeberlehutonfire.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Haeberlehutonfire.jpg License: Public Domain Contributors: Ronald L. Haeberle
File:Mylaiman.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Mylaiman.jpg License: Public Domain Contributors: Ronald L. Haeberle

File:My Lai Memorial Site - Vietnam - Diorama of Massacre.JPG Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:My_Lai_Memorial_Site_-_Vietnam_-_Diorama_of_Massacre.JPG
License: Creative Commons Attribution-Sharealike 3.0 Contributors: Adam Jones Adam63

License

Creative Commons Attribution-Share Alike 3.0 Unported
reati’ s.org/lic 3.0/




	My Lai Massacre
	Incident 
	Background 
	Killings 
	Helicopter intervention 

	Aftermath 
	Reporting, cover-up and investigations 
	Court martial 
	Survivors 

	Effects and analysis 
	Participants 
	Commanders 
	1st Platoon, Charlie Company 
	Other soldiers 
	Rescue helicopter crew 

	Photographs 
	Media 
	References 
	Further reading 
	External links 

	License

